*The minutes presented within this document are a summary of the discussion that took place at the Board of Education meeting. To view the meeting in its entirety and hear full reports please go to: January 4, 2023 Meeting Recording* Passcode: T4ak%\*^!

### BRISTOL BOARD OF EDUCATION Bristol, Connecticut Wednesday, January 4, 2023 – 7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting Minutes

The Bristol Board of Education meeting was held on Wednesday, January 4, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. at the Bristol Board of Education auditorium and via the Zoom Meeting Platform.

**PRESENT:** Commissioners: Russell Anderson, Jennifer Dube, Kristen Giantonio, Todd Sturgeon, Dante Tagariello, and Karen Vibert; **ALSO PRESENT:** Dr. Catherine Carbone, Superintendent, Dr. Michael Dietter, Deputy Superintendent and Jolene Lusitani, Council Liaison

EXCUSED: Commissioners Eric Carlson and Shelby Pons

#### I. CALL TO ORDER/ PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/MEETING NORMS

Chair Dube called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. and asked the audience to stand for The Pledge of Allegiance Chair Dube asked the audience to join her in a moment of silence for Matthew Sportelli a Teacher at Stafford, City Wide, Patterson, Northeast, and Hubbell from 9/3/58 to 6/30/1989.

Chair Dube read the meeting norms into the record.

#### **II. STAFF AND STUDENT RECOGNITION**

BAIMS Art Gallery Opening - Pushpita Hussain – Senior Student Representative - Bristol Eastern H.S.- Pushpita was present online and she shared information about the art show and the grant she received to have the gallery opening. The show was called the "A Florissant" which means coming to view or existence or flowering which honors her own name Pushpita which means flowered or blossomed. Pushpita was able to connect her community and show her passion and love of art. This program was made possible through Group Tape, which offered a grant to provide support and resources to young youth that lack rich learning opportunities for a desired project. Pushpita wanted to create an event that showcased the identity of our respective communities and by connecting with these local artists here in Connecticut the gallery came to life. The installation is still up until the end of January so if you all have time you should definitely check that out.

- 2. Bristol Business Education Foundation Mini-Grant Winners A reception was held earlier in the evening to present the following grant winners
  - 1. Marcy Deschaine Mountain View School Capturing Our Learning Awarded: \$1,000.00
  - 2. Holly Caruso Pugliese South Side School Magic Carpet Awarded: \$1,995.41
  - 3. Nicole Redman BECC/Edgewood Communication Beyond the Classroom Awarded: \$1,935.00
  - 4. Bridget Gohla ACCESS Program BEHS/BCHS Operation Renovation Awarded: \$422.00
  - 5. Lindsey DiPietro BAIMS Make Your Mark Mural at BAIMS Awarded: \$1,878.64

The Business Education Foundation, through donations, grants and partnerships is able to fund programs not normally included in the school or City budget. The Foundation also promotes partnerships that enable Bristol Public Schools to benefit from corporate grants and matching gifts. These partnerships educate the community on the needs of Bristol Public Schools and deepen community support.

#### **III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES**

#### December 7, 2022 - Regular BoE Meeting

On a motion by Dante Tagariello and a second, by Kristen Giantonio, the Board of Education approved the December 7, 2022 Regular meeting minutes as written.

## **IV. COMMITTEE REPORTS**

**Finance Committee** – Dante Tagariello shared that Budget Workshops will be held Tuesday, January 17, and January 24 from 6-8 p.m. Commissioner Tagariello encouraged the public to attend the workshops.

**Operations Committee** – Russell Anderson reported that the committee met and discussed the Bristol Central and Bristol Eastern culinary arts project we also discussed the Chippens Hill UST update. We discussed the updates for the Edgewood school project and a motion was made to engage with the JCG Architects in the amount of \$24,500 for conceptual design and to forward that to the board for approval. The NEMS project update was discussed as well as the ESSR APR Hubbell School Project update. Athletic fields were discussed and a donation proposal for Bristol Central High School for batting cages, this donation was made by a former member of Bristol Central High School. There was a review of the 2023-24 Capital Improvement Plan and there was a vote to approve the 2023-24 Capital Improvement Plan and the to take action.

**Student Achievement** – Todd Sturgeon reported that the committee met on December 21<sup>st</sup> and approved the 23-24 committee calendar. They also approved the K-5 Physical Education Health curriculum which will be coming to the full board tonight for approval. They received information on Cartooning and Animation, also on Advanced Personal Finance Curriculum and a presentation about BPS Career Pathways was presented by Dr. Rechenberg. The committee also discussed the Reach Academy Charter school and that was tabled for further discussion.

# V. STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE REPORTS

#### **Bristol Central High School**

BCHS Junior Representative, Isabel Paolina gave her first report to the Board. Highlights from her report included Winter sports are off to a great start with wrestling, basketball, indoor track and boys' swim and dive. The wrestling team won their opening night against Enfield. Boys' basketball had a close game against Eastern with an end score of 44 to 49, Ram Mountain packed the student section to support the team. Girls' basketball started off strong with four wins and two loses. The InterAct members help to bring the holiday spirit to the seniors at the Bristol Senior Center. They helped with the holiday dinner along with gingerbread house making, it brought a lot of joy to the seniors during the holiday season. InterAct members also donated gifts to families in our own community. Students dressed up for spirit week leading up to Christmas and the school came together for Festus once again which was a huge success many fun games were played along with performances from the dance team, teachers, and the male cheerleaders. Our annual holiday concert also took place for the band and choral students. Latin students celebrated the ancient Roman Holiday of Saturnalia. Students dressed up, played games and music and put on performances and ate food. Students are working hard to prepare for midterms.

### **Bristol Eastern High School**

Senior Representative Max Stavens shared happenings from Bristol Eastern. Highlights from his report included In sports, the boys' basketball team is currently 4-1, the highlight of which was their victory in the holiday tournament over the break. Our lady Lancers currently have two great wins against Manchester and Lewis Mills as well as a few hard-fought battles. Wrestling, swimming, and indoor track are in full competition, mode. The Theater Arts program had a smashing success with 12 Angry jurors in early December. The on and off-stage members were awesome as usual. They are now getting ready for the spring musical which will be Pippen, the show is set for early May and we hope to see as many people there as possible. Before the break, there was a student vs teachers basketball game as well as some holiday theme games we had two competitive games and the teachers came away with thrilling wins in both games; we hope to reestablish this great tradition. Looking ahead, the 8<sup>th</sup>-grade open houses are next Tuesday, January 10th. Most college application deadlines are approaching in the next few weeks and many seniors are starting to hear of acceptances to schools they applied to in early admission rounds; next up will be scholarship season. We will wrap up this first semester and have a successful midterm week following MLK Day. Shortly after we will be receiving recommendations and making course selections for the 2023-2024 school year. There is still a lot of winter to go and that will include sports contests, SAT testing, mastery-based credit project completions, the celebration of African American History Month, and plans for the celebration of school safety and diversity.

Chair Dube also announced Rita Gao as the new Junior Student Representative of Bristol Eastern High School. Rita was online for this evening's meeting and will give her first report at the February BoE meeting.

## VI. CHAIR REPORT

Chair Dube reported that Commissioner Christopher Wilson resigned last month from the Board of Education. Chair Dube shared a history of Mr. Wilson's accolades as a board member. Chris Wilson was online and spoke about his time on the Board.

### **VII. SUPERINTENDENT REPORT**

Dr. Carbone presented the monthly Superintendent Report. Dr. Carbone shared that the district will be notifying all families in Grades Prek-7 of their next school year assignments beginning the week of January 17. The letter will inform parents of their child's next school year assignment aligned with the redistricting plan. In early February a second letter will be sent to all families that are being assigned to a new school community. This second letter will outline the parent orientation dates and locations as well as the dates set for school visits by school administrators and school visits for students. Dr. Carbone shared the dates for visits: Week of March 6, 2023 - Administrators visit students; Week of March 13, 2023- Students visit schools; Week of March 21, 2023- K-5 Parent Orientation; Week of March 26, 2023-K-8 and 6-8 Parent Orientation. Under the Reimagining Plan 2023 topic. Dr. Carbone provided an update regarding the NEMS Project. The district has received confirmation from the Office of Schools Construction and Grants that the project that was submitted for a larger NEMS was placed on the priority list and will be considered during this legislative session.

## VIII. CONSENT AGENDA

Chair Dube called for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, which included Items 8A.1. through 8.A.4.

On a motion by Dante Tagariello and a second by Kristen Giantonio, the Board of Education (Commissioners Anderson, Giantonio, Sturgeon, Tagariello, Vibert, and Dube) voted to unanimously approve the Consent Agenda as written.

### VIII.A. PERSONNEL

### VIII.A.1. Administrator Retirement

Cassin, Christopher - BOE - Supervisor of Athletics - Effective February 1, 2023

On a motion by Dante Tagariello and a second by Kristen Giantonio, the Board of Education (Commissioners Anderson, Giantonio, Sturgeon, Tagariello, Vibert, and Dube) voted to unanimously accept the Administrator Retirement as written.

### VIII.A.2. Teacher Resignation

Jacques, Stephanie - CW - 6-12 Mathematics Coach - Effective January 30, 2023On a motion by Dante Tagariello and a second by Kristen Giantonio, the Board of Education (Commissioners Anderson, Giantonio, Sturgeon, Tagariello, Vibert, and Dube) voted to unanimously accept the Teacher Resignation as written.

### VIII.A.3. New Teacher Hires

Coyle, Melaney - ID - Social Worker - Effective January 9, 2023 Therrien, Sydney - BE/BC - Special Education Teacher - Effective Date TBD Wilson, Rachel - WB - Grade 7 Special Education Teacher - Effective Date TBD

On a motion by Dante Tagariello and a second by Kristen Giantonio, the Board of Education (Commissioners Anderson, Giantonio, Sturgeon, Tagariello, Vibert, and Dube) voted to unanimously approve the New Teacher Hires as written.

### VIII.A.4. A-3 Hire - Effective August 23, 2022

Chasse, Erin - EDGE - Elementary Science Leader

### VIII.A.4. A-3 Hire - Effective August 23, 2022 - cont'd

On a motion by Dante Tagariello and a second by Kristen Giantonio, the Board of Education (Commissioners Anderson, Giantonio, Sturgeon, Tagariello, Vibert and Dube) voted to unanimously approve the A-3 Hires as written.

Dr. Carbone took a moment to recognize the retirement of Christopher Cassin, Supervisor of Athletics, Effective February 1, 2023. Mr. Cassin has served the Bristol Public Schools for 39 years and has spearheaded several programs and relationships that are still active to date.

#### **IX. PUBLIC COMMENT**

No members of the public wished to address the Board.

### X. DELIBERATED ITEMS/DISTRICT LEADERSHIP TEAM REPORTS

#### X.A. 21st Century Grant Bid Waiver

At the December 14, 2022, Board of Education Finance Committee meeting, a bid waiver was requested for the 21st Century Grant. To provide food for the afterschool program.

On a motion by Karen Vibert and a second by Dante Tagariello, the Board of Education (Commissioners Anderson, Giantonio, Sturgeon, Tagariello, Vibert, and Dube) voted unanimously to authorize the Business Service Department to seek a Bid Waiver from the City Board of Finance for purchases from Cravings Eatery for the after school feeding program.

#### X.B. Emergency Connectivity Bid Waiver

At the December 14, 2022, Board of Education Finance Committee meeting, a bid waiver was requested for the Federal Emergency Connectivity Fund.

On a motion by Dante Tagariello and a second by Kristen Giantonio, the Board of Education (Commissioners Anderson, Giantonio, Sturgeon, Tagariello, Vibert, and Dube) voted unanimously to authorize the Business Service Department to seek a Bid Waiver from the City Board of Finance for purchases from IT Outlet for student Chromebooks.

### X.C. Approval of 2023 Board of Education Regular Meetings

In accordance with Section 1-21 of the Connecticut General Statutes and in keeping with Board of Education policy, a schedule of Board of Education meeting dates for the 2023 calendar year is required by the Town and City Clerk. The Regular Board of Education meeting will be held on the first Wednesday of every month (except July, August, and September) at 7:00 p.m. virtually or in the Auditorium of the Board of Education Administration Building, located at 129 Church Street, Bristol, Connecticut.

On a motion by Dante Tagariello and a second by Kristen Giantonio, the Board of Education (Commissioners Anderson, Giantonio, Sturgeon, Tagariello, Vibert, and Dube) voted to unanimously approve the 2023 Board of Education Regular Meetings dates as presented.

#### X.D. Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Approval

Peter Fusco, Facilities Director presented the Capital Improvement Plan. Commissioners have received a copy of the CIP spreadsheet. At the December 21, 2022, Operations Committee meeting, the committee voted to approve the presented Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). The next step is for the Board of Education to approve it and forward it to the 10-year CIP Committee and the City Board of Finance. Questions followed regarding working with the comptroller and the bonding capacity of the city.

On a motion by Kristen Giantonio and a second by Dante Tagariello, the Board of Education (Commissioners Anderson, Giantonio, Sturgeon, Tagariello, Vibert, and Dube) voted unanimously to approve Board of Education

### X.D. Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Approval – cont'd

approves the 2023-2024 Capital Improvement Plan and forward it to the City's Board of Finance and the 10-year CIP Committee.

### X.E. Edgewood School Conceptual Design

Dr. Dietter presented the Edgewood School Conceptual Design item. At the December 21, 2022, Operations Committee meeting, three options were reviewed for projects at Edgewood School. The preferred option was to move forward with Targeted Alterations. It is the recommendation of the Project Manager to engage with an architect for a conceptual design to move this forward.

On a motion by Todd Sturgeon and a second by Dante Tagariello, the Board of Education (Commissioners Anderson, Giantonio, Sturgeon, Tagariello, Vibert, and Dube) voted unanimously to approve engaging with JCJ Architects in the amount of \$24,500 for Conceptual Design for Targeted Alterations at Edgewood School, located at 345 Mix Street, Bristol.

### X.F. Edgewood School Conceptual Estimate

Dr. Dietter presented the Edgewood School Conceptual Estimate. At the December 21, 2022, Operations Committee meeting, the three options were reviewed for projects at Edgewood. The preferred option was to move forward with Targeted Alterations. It is the recommendation of the Project Manager to engage with an estimator for a conceptual estimate.

On a motion by Russell Anderson and a second by Todd Sturgeon, the Board of Education (Commissioners Anderson, Giantonio, Sturgeon, Tagariello, Vibert, and Dube) voted unanimously to approve engaging with D'Amato Construction in the amount of \$15,008 for a Conceptual Estimate for Targeted Alterations at Edgewood School, located at 345 Mix St. Bristol.

### X.G. Donation Proposal – Bristol Central H.S. Athletic Department Batting Cages

Dr. Dietter presented the Bristol Central H.S. Athletic Department Batting Cages. At the December 21, 2022, Operations Committee meeting, the committee voted to approve a proposed donation of batting cages. The cages would be for use with hardball and softball. Any scholar-athlete the plays baseball or softball will have access to the cages. The donation is written in a way that the donation is not to exceed \$25,000. We have an estimate, it is roughly \$20,000 and with our other plans that we have around upgrades to athletics and facilities, we would be building a similar structure at Bristol Eastern High School.

On a motion by Russell Anderson and a second by Kristen Giantonio, the Board of Education (Commissioners Anderson, Giantonio, Sturgeon, Tagariello, Vibert, and Dube) voted unanimously to approve approves the donation, to be used for batting cages at Bristol Central High School, for an amount not to exceed of \$25,000.

## X.H. BEHS Trip to Costa Rica – April 2023

Michael Higgins, Principal at Bristol Eastern High School presented the BEHS Trip to Costa Rica – April 2023. Prior to language teacher Andrea Schacht leaving BPS for another school district back in October, she had submitted and the board had approved a trip abroad to Peru featuring a trip to Machu Picchu and other Peruvian cultural destinations. BEHS only has a handful of students and chaperones attending so in order to make the trip happen, BEHS was to partner with another school going. That other school has since canceled their trip rendering the trip as a whole, canceled. Justin McDermott, who was kind enough to take over for the trip after Mrs. Schacht's departure was just recently notified of this change which came from Explorica - the company planning the trip's itinerary. In an effort to keep a trip abroad on the same April week for our students. Two were Costa Rica packages and one was for the Galapagos Islands. Ultimately, the families voted for one of the two Costa Rican packages. Benefits of this package include:

- There would be a significant decrease in cost to your travelers about \$840 will be refunded to each traveler
- While a day shorter than the Peru trip, this tour focuses on the different cultures of Costa Rica, traveling to both the Pacific and the Caribbean sides of the country, where you'll be able to partake in activities such as a

## X.H. BEHS Trip to Costa Rica – April 2023 – cont'd

Caribbean dance lesson, Caribbean flavors cooking class, a visit to an Indigenous Reserve that farms cacao beans for chocolate, as well as a relaxing yoga class in a rainforest setting.

• This option provides your students each day with new introductions to the various cultures in Costa Rica

On a motion by Kristen Giantonio and a second by Dante Tagariello, the Board of Education (Commissioners Anderson, Giantonio, Sturgeon, Tagariello, Vibert, and Dube) voted to unanimously approve the Bristol Eastern High School trip to Costa Rica from April 7, 2023 to April 15, 2023.

### X.I. CTE Pathway Overview

Dr. Rechenberg, Secondary STEM Supervisor presented the CTE Pathway Overview. In conjunction with core academics, the Bristol Schools Career and Technical Education (CTE) pathways are designed to support student exploration of high skill, high demand, and/or high-wage careers. Each pathway provides students an opportunity to gain college credit and/or industry recognized credentials. Students are encouraged to complete a minimum of 1.5 credits in a pathway or concentration area. A pathway is a series of courses designed to support exploration for a specific career objective (i.e. Accounting and Finance), whereas a career concentration represents the broader industry (i.e. Business). Questions followed regarding a possible pathway in Law Enforcement/Criminal Justice and or trades.

### X.J. Lieutenant Dustin DeMonte and Sergeant Alex Hamzy Public Safety Scholarship

Dr. Dietter presented the Lieutenant Dustin DeMonte and Sergeant Alex Hamzy Public Safety Scholarship. The Lieutenant Dustin DeMonte and Sergeant Alex Hamzy Public Safety Scholarship will be awarded annually to a senior in good standing from BCHS and BEHS, enrolling in a two or four-year college or university, majoring in Criminal Justice or Public Safety. The scholarship will be in the amount of \$1,500.00. The scholarship is initially funded through the collaborative efforts of the Bristol Police Union and the employees of Bristol Public Schools. More information about the scholarship and how to donate will be available in the coming days. The fund will be managed by The Main Street Community Foundation. Members from each of the groups accompanied Dr. Dietter during the presentation.

### X.K. Special Services Report

Dr. Kim Culkin presented the monthly Special Services Report. As of December 1, 2022, 1,700 of 8,120 Bristol students are identified as students requiring Special Education programming. This enrollment reflects 20.94% of the total BPS student population. During the month of November 2022, 13.64% of newly registered students were identified as students with special education programming needs at the time of registration. No students newly enrolled in BPS during the month of November 2022 were receiving their programs and services at out-of-district special education school programs at the time of enrollment. During the month of November 2022, 46 risk assessments were conducted by BPS staff. As of December 1, 2022, 118 of our 1,700 identified students require out-of-district placements at private special education school programs and 71 students require special education programming services at other public out-of-district schools including magnet schools.

## **XI. CURRICULUM REVISION**

### XI.A. K-5 PE Curriculum Revision

Sara Hale, PE/Wellness Dean presented the K-5 PE Curriculum Revision. The curriculum is based on the Connecticut Health and Balanced Living Curriculum Framework. Students will participate in activities that promote social-emotional well-being while working on improving physical fitness and team-building skills. They will be given a solid foundation which will extend into an opportunity to develop intermediate and advanced skills. An emphasis will be placed on the importance of a healthy lifestyle and physical fitness to address the increase in childhood diseases. Students will assess personal needs, interests, abilities, and opportunities related to physical fitness with a focus on personal improvement. The curriculum is designed to allow students to select from a variety of activities:

#### K-5 PE Curriculum Revision – cont'd

- 1. Team sports, e.g., basketball, soccer, and volleyball.
- 2. Individual and health-related activities, e.g., weight training, weight control, walk/jog, aerobic conditioning activities.
- 3. Lifetime, leisure activities, e.g. Badminton, tennis, and backyard games.

On a motion by Kristen Giantonio and a second by Todd Sturgeon, the Board of Education (Commissioners Anderson, Giantonio, Sturgeon, Tagariello, Vibert and Dube) voted unanimously to approve the K-5 PE Curriculum Revision.

### **XI.B.** Cartooning and Animation Curriculum

Ken Bagley presented the Cartooning and Sequential Art Curriculum. This course introduces students to the concepts of Cartooning and other sequential arts. The units are designed to take the students through the creative process to develop and design their own sequential projects. The units below outline the key learning topics for the half-credit, semester-long course. Mr. Bagley thanked the teachers that worked to create the curriculum.

On a motion by Kristen Giantonio and a second by Todd Sturgeon, the Board of Education (Commissioners Anderson, Giantonio, Sturgeon, Tagariello, Vibert and Dube) voted unanimously to waive the second reading of the curriculum and to approve the curriculum as presented.

### **XI.C. Advanced Personal Finance**

Dr. Rechenberg presented the Advance Personal Finance. This accelerated course is ideal for students striving to get a head start on real-life financial challenges affecting them now and in the future. Students will take a deeper dive into topics from Personal Finance. The course will examine personal incomes and budgets, home and consumer financing, insurance of personal assets, personal investing, and retirement planning. Topics will include the time value of money, investments, loans and credit, cash management, taxes, life and health insurance, and estate planning. Students will gain the knowledge and skills necessary to successfully navigate the complex world of financial literacy. Students will have the opportunity to articulate the credit with this course with the Personal Finance course at Tunxis Community College (BFN 110). Students will earn .5 high school credits with the potential to earn three college credits through the Tunxis Community College's Career Pathways program. In order to take this course, students must be in grades 10 through 12 and have earned an average of 75 or higher in the prerequisite Personal Finance course. Questions followed regarding credits being used at other universities.

On a motion by Todd Sturgeon and a second by Kristen Giantonio, the Board of Education (Commissioners Anderson, Giantonio, Sturgeon, Tagariello, Vibert and Dube) voted unanimously to waive the second reading of the curriculum and to approve the curriculum as presented.

### XII. TEXTBOOK ADOPTION

### XII.A. ECE Physics Textbook Selection

Dr. Rechenberg presented the ECE Physics Textbook Selection. Physics teachers met to review three physics textbooks and determine which text best aligned to the University of Connecticut curriculum. Each of the selected textbooks were scored using the district rubric for textbook selection. The three textbooks reviewed and their rubric score are listed below:

- 1. AP Physics 1 (Edvantage) 25 on Rubric
- 2. Physics Principles with Applications (Giancoli) 29 on Rubric
- 3. College Physics 11th Edition (Serway-Vuille) 44 on Rubric
- 4.

The physics teachers have selected College Physics 11th edition (Serway-Vuille) as its score shows tight alignment to the University of Connecticut and Bristol ECE Physics curriculum. This is the first reading of the textbooks. Books can be previewed in Dr. Rechenberg's office during the intervening month.

### XI. NEW BUSINESS

There was no New Business to come before the Board.

#### XII. BUILDING REPORTS

#### **MBIAMS** Committee Update

Dr. Dietter MBIAMS Committee has not met formally. Dr. Dietter shared that the first school production in the theater on Friday, January 6. It is a small production that will be attended by the parents or guardians of the participants. The mezzanine was fitted with safety rails and they will be painted. We will keep the audience out of that area. Things are moving along and we are really looking forward to opening the doors to the community and having a larger event in that space.

In Mr. Callahan's absence, Dr. Dietter presented all building reports/updates.

#### **High School Culinary Project Update**

We are working through our construction documents right now they have been submitted to OSCGR priority Grant and that will be taken up on June 30th.

#### ESSER/ARP Building Committee Update

We are working through the survey and existing documents in an engineering presentation to the building committee and that's going to happen Thursday, January 5th.

#### **NEMS Building Committee Update**

Lastly, regarding the Northeast Middle School building committee update we did meet and walk the site with a representative of OSCGR we've been shortlisted for state legislator approval and we do anticipate the approvals will come through in June.

#### XIII. INFORMATION/LIAISON REPORTS

Commissioner Dube shared a liaison report from BAIMS. She highlighted numerous activities from the building.

#### **XVI. ADJOURNMENT**

There being no other business to come before the Board, the meeting should adjourn. (8:13 p.m.)

Respectfully Submitted,

usar Event

Susan Everett, Recording Secretary Bristol Board of Education